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CAPTEC GROUP PLC

GROUP STRATEGIC REPORT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

Captec Group Plc delivered against.its business. plan, despite a.backdrop of s:gnlﬁcant supply chain pressure
As well-as double-digit growth in revenue, gross profits and adjusted EBITDA, this year saw Captec secure its
highest ever order intake and two significant customier wins, within our target sectors.

The sticcess is extremely pleasing, given it has been achieved within both UK and North American operations.
Investment in all operating locations within the-Group means the Group is equipped with the capacity enabling
the delivery of future growth.

The Group perceives a number of structural growth trends, that play to its strengths, as computmg is
increasingly pushed to the “edge” in support of IOT applications. The Group's value proposition is specifically
focused on keeping computing operational in critical, certified and/or challenging environments. This leaves the
Group well placed to déliver further sustainable growth in the forthcoming years.

People

Attracting, retaining and inspiring talent has become an incfeasing priority for the Group. It is developing the
employee proposition, in order to create a great place to work.

Headcount was broadly in line with 2021, at an average of 159. The delivery of the Group's financial
performance without a concurrent increase in employees, is demonstration of the team’s commitment and their
focus on continuous.improvement:

The Group' cost base has been impacted by inflationary pressures. However, a number of improvements in
benefits have been delivered in a manner which has partially offset higher costs. Improvements in this area are
likely to have contributed to a reduction in staff turnover across the Group.

Much can still be improved within the Group, but the progress made in the year is pleasing and efforts will
continue during 2023.

Product

Opportunities continue to be sought, where the full, énd-fo-end capability of the Group ¢can be leveraged, to
provide praducts to customers. )

FY22 saw a néw ruggedised tablet; predommantly sold into thie leisure industry. In addition, the Group.entered
the high-performance server market, where it has already had.success securing néw customers and sugnmcant
new orders,

its embedded engineeririg team is working on a number of exciting projects, several of which have the potential
to give rise to.new product and manufacturing opporiunities in.the future.

Economic climate

Sentiment around the UK economy was négative for. large parts-of 2022, but the start of 2023. has seen some
improvement, with inflationary concerns having reduced.

Whilst the potential for recession cannot be ignored in some of the sectors the Group addresses it also serves
healthcare and defence which are typically more resilient to such conditions.

The team in North America are benéfitting from a renewed focus on manufacture in the US, serving as it does,
a number:of OEM manufacturers located there.-

The potential for a UK recession cannot be lgnored but the Group has no debt, a robust balance sheet and has
proven its model is sufficiently scalable to maintain high levels of profitability, despite the sharpest of

downturns.
3



‘GROUP STRATEGIC. REPORT {CONTINUED)
FOR TH"‘ YEAR ENDED.31 DECEMBER 2022

‘Outlook

The team Will continuié to be _bum during. 2023’. t

pabmty at both senior level
elopment and Markeéting’

fing..

ienisufe the': group; lnvests .ln the [

Key performance indicators

2022 2021
Financial KPls £m £, Chaiige.
Revenue. - 32:6 2672 24:4%.
Gross:Profit , 10.4 9.0 15.6%
Adjusted EBITDA? CE] 56 8.9%
Underlying cash? - 23.0 259 #11.2%
Non-Financial KPis: 20220 2021 Change
Ordefs seciired 389 307 267%
Book-to-billed 119% 117% 1.7%

TAdjusted.EBITDA excludes share- based paythent, charges.and costs related to. a potéritial transaction; ‘along
with deprecvatlon ‘amortisation, interest: -and tax from the measuré of profif.,

1’Underlylng cash. |s Cash and cash, equuvalents 'and amounts held:a§ Cuirent asset investments because it is
held on-deposits of over'3 months at yeéat end.

Section 172 Statement

the_y bonsuier‘ ify good fanth would be' ost hkely o' promote the sucé:e
é.regard” (amongst other matte



CAPTEC GROUP PLC

GROUP-STRATEGIC'REPORT (CONTINUED):
FOR THE'YEARENDED ‘31,_DECEMBER 2022

Erigaging with employées:

The‘company conducts all sta

requiar; informal social activities :
Engaging with cuistoriérs

AII recurnng customers have: dedlcated pomts of contact., wnth ’lts major customers often havmg multlple
Oints wi ‘a ' 0

Engaging with suppliers:

The: company has a wnde-ranglng supplaer base as part of its -supply- chain arrangements in the countries: in
which it operates and worldwide. . Major suppllers are mteracted through multiple Jevels wnthm the organisation,
up to.and including the execuuve board membérs,.but typic: l_ly communication is focused ‘dround staff within: ats
procuremem functions. Suppher performance-is rewewed on:a continuous basis; ‘with: two-way communlcatlon

in place

E'ngaﬂging with reguiators

stakeholderé

Ml’ri'iin'iélng envirt{iﬁqmg’mgi impact

sélection..of optldné which create the’ most: overall benef t and/or'progress ‘agalnst its Stratedic: plans. These
‘pians aré thémselves, déveloped with stakeholder perspectwes in mind.
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CAPTEG GROUP PLC

GROUP STRATEGIC REPORT (CONTINUED)
‘FOR THE'YEAR ENDED: 31 DECEMBER 2022:

Principal risk§ and uincertainties

The' Group ;fag
risks from comp

to. m‘mg‘a ing. t; 0sé iisKs:

Risk’and Mitigation Description

Depetidence oh key customers:

‘The Group beneflts from strong relatlonshlps with its top Whlle Ahe. Group supplies products-and sérvicés'to a.
téri customers and benefitfrom strength and Iongevnty number of ading OEMs arid.otheér key: .customers:

within'those: relatlonshlps ‘it depend: mited number of large customers
for.a S|gn1f icant proportlon ofits révenue..

‘However, the Board recogrises the heed'to increase:
diveisification, but. pelieves this: will: ‘naturally develop: The relatlonshlp of the. Group wnth ns key customers;
2hrough executiory of it§ growth- strategy. :as outlined in the [ I
‘ChisFExecutive: ort.

v ‘Sence of néw
red fom: elsewhere.




CAPTEC GROUP PLC

GROUP STRATEGIC REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

Competition in its sectors

All business face competition in the markets in which
they operate and the Group is fortunate not to
experience a single competitor across all the product

areas and sectors it serves. This provides mitigation in
that competition is more likely to occur within a particular
segment, rather than across the breadth of the Group’s

activities.

Furthermore, the Board reviews its strategic position
across its operations, to ensure strategic threats are

identified and mitigated. Where specific conditions are

jdentified, from time to time, that could give rise to a
competitive problem, appropriate responses are
identified and implemented. This could include

proposing new business models, revisions to product or

approach to the market.

Dependence on key staff

The Board is aware of the potential risk and focus was
placed on this area through establishment of incentive

programs to help minimise flight risk.

In addition, its remuneration committee will provide
oversight of the Groups offering around retention and
reward, to ensure it remains competitive.

During FY23, the Board will establish a Nominations

committee which will ensure suitable succession plans

are in place.

Finally, for members of staff considered to be especially

key, the Group is considering establishing key man
insurance arrangements to help mitigate the financial
impact should an issue arise in respect to them.

The Group faces competition, both domestically and
internationally. In some markets, where commercial
alternatives or existing suppliers are competitive to
the Group's offering, certain of these competitors
are |arger and have access to greater financial,
technical and marketing resqurces than the Group,
enabling unit economics the Group cannot compete
with,

The Group's future success will depend in part upon
the Group's ability to retain its competitive position
in the market. Any failure to maintain its competitive
position may have material adverse effect on the
Group's prospects, results of operations and
financial condition.

The Group may aiso face competition from new

~companies that have greater research,

development, marketing, financial and personne!
resources than the Group or as a result of the
insourcing of its activities into OEMs, prime
contractors or systems integrators to which it
currently sells.

The Group has dependencies on key senior
management personnel who have extensive
experience and knowledge of the Group, its
solutions, its customers, its target markets and its
business generally.

The successful implementation of the Group's
growth strategy depends on the continued
availability of senior management and the Group's
ability to continue to attract, motivate and retain
such individuals.

If members of the Group’s senior management
depart and. adequate succession plans are not put
in.place, the Group may not be able to find effective
replacements in a timely manner, or at ail and the
Group’s business may be disrupted. In addition, the
foss of key members of senior management to
competitors may have an adverse longer-term
impact on the financial performance of the Group.



CAPTEC GROUP PLC:

GROUP STRATEGIC REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

Supply chain dependence.

The Group enjoys strong and lengthy relationships with

its.supply ¢hain but the Board recognises areas ‘exist
where dependenaes have been created or could
develop in the future. For this reason, the Board is
developing proactive strategles around its existing
supply chains, to minimise these areas through
idéntifying second sources of supply and addressing

geographical supply concentration. As'well as.holding
significant levels of inventory where specific threats are

identified and it is possible to do so.

Component availability throughout the value chain

The Group's relationships with its supply chain has

afforded some degree of flexibility across the past few
years, where industry conditions have been materially

more difficult than in the past.

However, where possible, and in particular during FY22,

the Board made a decision to make a significant,

strategic investment in mventory to ensure it could meet

customer demand, enabling delivery of its FY22
business plan.

The Group is fortuniate to have the cash reserves and
‘physical capacity to hold significant amouints.of

invéntory in response to such risks.and will continue to

do so until the Board is ¢onfident that the position has
eased;

In‘order te praduce its products, the Groupis
dependenit on the delivery of certain components
and raw materials and hence has built up a reliable
supplier base for its externally sourced components.
If for any reason, any suppliers cease to,-or became
unable to, supply the parts -or materials requiréd,f,or
the Group's products, the Group may not be able to
find an alternative source or supply or may only be
able to'do 50 on less advantageous terms.

Any unexpected disruption to, or termination of,
these supply arrangemients could negatively. impact
the Group's ability to deliver on customer contracts
which may have a material ‘adverse effect on the
Group’s reputation, business, prospects, results. of
operations and financial condition,

The Group is exposed to the Fisk that Supply
shortages impact the components within its
products.

For example, key suppliers and OEMs faced a
global shortage of semiconductors, which'has
resulted in lower produiction volumes.

The related shortages currently remain ongoing.
The outlook is improving steadily but is unfikely to
be fully alleviated in the near term,

A persistent shortage of semiconductors-and other
tomponents may affect the business,. operating
results and financigl condition of the. Group going
forward. Shorter-term impacts would likely impact
the timing of delivery of financial performance.



CAPTEC GROUP PLC

GROUP STRATEGIC REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

Failure to implement growth strategies successfully
The Group's growth strategies are outlined in the Chief

Executive Officer’s report. The Board recognises the

need for additional resources to ensure these strategies

are delivered as planned.

The Group is therefore investing in additional physical
capacity in its production faciiities and through its

employee base to ensure that delivery is not constrained

by either of these factors.

In addition, the drumbeat of monthly Board meetings

and introduction of, credible, experienced non-executive
directors with skills pertinent to the Group's plans, has

and will continue to help ensure the strong delivery of
strategic actions.

Cybersecurity

Having suffered a ransomware attack.in FY22, the
Group took the opportunity to revise its network

protection arrangements in line with recommendations

made by external specialists engaged to support the
incident.

The Group retains full disaster recovery plans and a

Cyberessentials + certification across the majority of its
operations, with that certification being extended across

all UK operations in FY23.

Cybersecurity is a standing item ori the Board's agenda

at each meeting and the Group retains staff with
sufficient experience to help identify, address and
respond to threats as they arise.

The Group’s growth and future prospects will be
dependent on the success of those growth and
expansion strategies currently or proposed to be
undertaken by the Group.

The execution of the Group's growth and expansion
strategies is expected to place further demands on
management, support functions, sales and
marketing functions and other resources of the
Group. In order to manage the further expansion of
the Group'’s business and the growth of its
operations and personnel, the Group may be
required to expand and enhance its infrastructure
and technology and enhance its operational and
financial systems as well as its procedures and
controls from time to time in order to match that
expansion. This could have a material cost to the
Group and may have a material adverse effect on
the Group's prospects, results of operations and
financial condition.

There can be no assurance that the Group's current
and planned staff, infrastructure, systems,
procedures and controls will be adequate to support
any expansion of operations in the future and
‘across the periods currently envisioned. If the -Group
fails to manage its expansion effectively, it may
have a material adverse effect on the Group's
business and financial resuilts.

The Group is exposed to the risks associated with
cybersecurity by virtue of its extemal technology
connections and communications and was subject
to such an attack during the course of FY22. Whilst
the impact was contained and relatively minimal, the
potential for significant operational disruption as a
result of any such future incident is clear.

Given many of the Group's operational systems are
virtual and cloud-based in nature, in line with
industry expectation, the risk that a further incident
could occur remains a feature of any operating
business. It is possible that any simitar event with a
more significant impact, could materially restrict the
Company's operations and therefore its financial
performance.



CAPTEC GROUP PLC

‘GROUP: STRATEGIC REPORT, (CONTINUED)
FOR.THE YEAR.ENDED 31 DECEMBER~2022

Geopolitical crisis/Global issues:
The Board recognnses the uncertainty under-which the
Group has operated in the past couple.of yéars;

'Whllst n ‘eheves '8cr08s 2 1o

‘ sification
'secon sourcmg away from‘éreas of supply nsk ,where:

possible:

10;

iadversely

polmcal tenswns Il 6Fthese types of’
iissue have thé p create a cascading effect
which: would impact on the Group ‘and its
opérations;

peratuons and financial performance




CAPTEC:GROUP-PLC:

GROUP STRATEGICREPORT: (CONTINUED):
FOR: THE YEAR ENDED'31. DECEMBER 2022

Complex contractlproject performance

The Group; Undertakes  pro, i ects whlch are inherently:
i
membe mTrelated Edstomers, dunng prOJect
execution..
In.addition; 1 e Group enmploys-péople; who'aré
suffﬁcnently ified to 'dentlfy and address'the nsks

-arising from® contrécts/ ci s}

To assist m this. process, ‘thé Group'has 4lso. developed"
‘processe ‘and’ procedures ‘o help take secured
:contracts/pro;ects ough to the operat:onal and

‘cgncluding phasé - This is in order to ensure all
:obligations are met 'on a'timely.basis, accordmg tothe
‘project plan.

Grolip's growth plan§

management and a:continuous improvemernit apprgach.

‘Tris report yas approved by the board o 2{ /5‘/ Joa 3, ‘andsigriedon its benalf

Max Toti
Director



CAPTEC GROUP PLG:

DIRECTORS' REPORT
FOR THE:YEAR ENDED 3 DECEMBER‘2022

Standards Board (IASB) (“IFRS )*and IFR!C,,n erpretanons rssued ﬁ_y:_the Intema
Board (IASB)..

Matters covered b,y:fhe’-‘s%’raieg.i‘cﬁiiep”onr

Principal activity

The: pnncrpal gctivity "of - Captec Group Piciis the: desrgn manhufacture and' support -of .specialist : ‘computeér’
systems operat g'in hosfile.or certmed ‘environments:

Research and.developmeént’

The Group.continues:io utilise: lts téchnical:and: fihan: al’,iresources in: workmg with new.and existing customers
and suppliers 6 develoy it knowledge and productrangé; Total expendlture on Research ;and developmerit
‘was £868,000 (2021: £1,169 ,000)..

Directors
The:directors who held officé during;thé period year:and subsequently weré as follows!
4. Max:Tolit

2. Egward Spifrier- (appointedi August 2022)
3 M|ke Trench (appomted 1 August 2022)

Greénhouse gas reporting

The:disclosure requurements of $1:2008/410 Sgh:7- Part: 7A have not been provided:here by virtue ‘of the entrty
rict being within the- scope of:the requrrements



CAPTEC GROUP PLC

DIRECTORS' REPORT {CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

Results-and dividends

Thie profit for the year; after taxation, amourited:to £4.5 million (2021 -£4.3 milfion).

A interim dividend of £0.4m (18.35p per share) was paid during the yéar in respect of the year ended 31
December 2022 {2021; £1.0m, 48.50p per share). The total. distribution of dividends for the year. ended 31
December 2022 was £0.4m (2021: £1.0m),

Disclosure. of information to auditors

Each of the persons who are directors at the time when this Diréctors' Répoit is approved has confirmed that:

. so far as the director is aware, there is no relevant audit information of which the Company and the
Group's auditors are unaware; and

. the director has taken all the steps that ought to have beeni taken as. a director in order to be aware of
any relévant audit information and to establish that the Company and the Group's auditors are aware of
that information:.

Auditors

BDO UK'LLP were appointed during the period and have expressed their willingness.to continue in office and a
resolution to re-appoint them will be proposed at the annual general meeting.

This report was approved by the board on 2,5 /_3/ 2023 and signed on:its behalf.

Max Toti
Director

13



CAPTEC GROUP PLC

DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITIES STATEMENT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

The directors are responsible for preparing the. Group Strategic Réport, Directors' Report and the consolidated
financial statements, in accordance with applicable law..

Company law requires the directors to prépare consélidated financial statements for each financial year. Under
that law they have elected to prepare the consolidated financial statements in accordance. with International
Financial Repomng Standards (IFRS) as.adoptéd by the, UK.

Under company law the- directors’ must not apprové the consolidated financial -statemerits unless they -are
satisfied that they give a triie and fairview of the state of affairs of the Grolip and-the Company ‘and of the profit
or loss of the Group for that period. In prepanng thé consolidated: financial statements, the directors are
requiredto:

o select suitable accounting policies and ther apply them consistently;
. make judgments and estimates that are feasonable and prudent;

. state' whether they have been prepared in accordance with IFRS s adopted by the UK, subject to any
material-departures disclosed-and explained in the firiancial statements;

. assess the Group and Company's ability to continue as a going coricern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related té going concern; and

. se the going concern basis of accounting unless they either intend to liquidate the Group or the
Company or. to cease operations or have no.realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors aré responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and éxplain
the parent Company's transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of
the parent Company and enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply with-the Companies Act
2006. They are responsible for such internal control as they determine is necessary to enable the preparation
of financial statements that are free from material ‘misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; and have:
general responsibiliy for taking such steps as. are reasonably open to them to safeguard the assets of the
Group and to prevent and detect fraud and other irregularities.

14



CAPTEC GROUP PLC

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF CAPTEC GROUP PLC

Qualified Opinion on the financial statements:

In our opinion, except for the possible effects of the matter described in the basis for qualified opinion section of
our report, the financial statements:

« give atrue and fair view of the state of the Group's and of the Parent Company’s affairs, as. at 31 December’
2022 and of the Group's profit for the year then ended;

« have been properly prepared in accordance with UK adopted International accounting standards;

« the Parent Company financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom
Generally Accepted Accounting Practice; and

+ the financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act
2006.

We have audited the financial statements of Captec Group Plc (“the Parént Company”) and its subsidiaries (the
'Group') for the year ended 31 December 2022 which comprise-the Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive
Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income, the Consolidated and Company Statement of Financial
Position, the Consolidated and Company Statement of Changes in Equity, the Consolidated Statement of Cash
fiows and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

The financial reporting framework that has been applied in the preparation of the Group financial statements is
applicable law and UK adopted international accounting standards. The financial reporting framework that has
been applied in the preparation of the Parent Company financial statements is epplicable law and United
Kingdom Accounting Standard, including Financial Reporting Standard 101 Reduced Disclosure Framework
(United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice).

Basis for qualified opinion

We were unable to observe the counting of physical inventory at 31 December 2021 for Captec Americas Inc.,
the subsidiary in Canada. We were unable to satisfy ourselves by alternative means concerning the stock
quantities held at 31 December 2021, which were included in the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
at £632,561, by using other auditing procedures. Consequently, we were unable to determine whether any
adjustment to this amount at 31 December 2021 was necessary or whether there was any consequential effect
on the cost of sales for the year ended 31 December 2022. In addition, were*any adjustment to the inventory
balarice to be requnred the Strategic report and Directors' report would also need to be amended. We
conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs (UK)) and applicable
law. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the
audit of the financial statements section of our report. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our qualified opinion.

Independence
We are independent of the Company in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit

of the financial statements in the UK, including the FRC's Ethical Standard, and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements,

15



' CAPTEC GROUP PLC

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF CAPTEC GROUP PLC

Conclusions relating to going concern

In auditing the financial stateménts, wé have concluded that the Directors’ use of the going concemn basis of
accounting in the preparatlon of the ﬁnancna| stateménts is approptiate.

Based on the work we have performed, we have not identified any material uncertainties relating to events or
conditions that; individually or collectively, may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a
going concern for a. period of at least twelve months from when the financial statements are authorised for
issue.

Our responsibilities and the resporisibilities- of the Directors with respect 1o goihg concern are described. in the
relevant sections of this report.

Other information

The Directors are responsible for the other mformat(on The othér information comprises the information
included in the' annual report other than the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon. Our opinion
on the financial statements does not cover the other information and, except to the extent otherwise explicitly
stated in our report, we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. Our responsibility is to read.
the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is- materially inconsistent with the
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the course of the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated. If we identify such material inconsistencies or apparent material misstatements; we are réquired to
determine whether this gives rise to a material misstatement in the financial statements themselves. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we
are required to report that fact.

As described in the basis of qualified opinion section of our report, we were unable to satisfy ourselves
concerning the inventory quantities of £632,561 included in the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position at.
31 December 2021. We have concluded that where the other information refers to the inventory balance or
related balance such as cost of sales or profit for the year, it may be materially misstated for the same reason.

Other Companies Act 2006 reporting

Except for the possible effects of the.matter described in the basis for qualified opinion- sectuon of-our report, in
our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit: .

- the information given in the Strateglc report and the- Directors’ report for the financial year for which the
financial statements are prepared is consistent with the financial statements; and

« the Strategic report and the Directors’ report have been prepared in accordance: with applicable legal
requirements.

Exceptfor the possible effects of the matter.described in the basis for qualified oplnlon section of our report, in
the light of the knowledge and understanding -of the Group and the Parent Company and their ‘environment
obtained in the course of the audit, we have not identified material misstatements in the. Stratégic report or the
Directors’ report.

Arising from the fimitation on the scope of our work referred to above we have not obtained ail of the
information and-explanations that we cansidered nécessary for the ;purpose of our audtt,

16



CAPTEC GROUP PLC

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF CAPTEC GROUP PLC

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which the Companies Act 2006
requires us to report to you if, in our opinion:

¢ adequate accounting records have not been kept, or returns adequate for our audit have not been received
from branches not visited by us; or

« the financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns; or
« certain disclosures of Directors’ remuneration specified by law are not made.
Responsibilities of Directors

As explained more fully in ihe Directors Responsibility Statement, the Directors are responsible for the
preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view, and for such
internal control as the Directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Directors are responsible for assessing the Companys ability to
continue as a going concern, d|sc|osmg, as applicable, matiers related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting-unless the Directors either intend to liquidate the Company or to cease operations,
or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

QOur objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our
opinien. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with ISAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to infiuence the economic decisions of usérs taken on the basis of these financial statements.

Extent to which the audit was capable of detecting irregularities, including fraud

Irregularities, including fraud, are instances of non-compliance with laws and regulations. We design
procedures in line with our responsibilities, outlined above, to detect material misstatements in respect of
iregularities, including fraud. The extent to which our procedures are capable of detecting irregularities,
including fraud is detailed below:

* We obtained an understanding of the legal and requlatory frameworks that are applicable to the Group and
the industry in which it operate. We considéered the sngmﬂcant laws and regulations to be FRS102 and the
Companies Act 2006.

« We understood how the company is complying with those frameworks by making enquires of management
and those charged with governance, We have corroborated our enquiries through review of Board minutes.

¢ We have evaluated management incentives and opportunities for fraudulent manipulation of the financial
statements including management override and revenue recognition and considered that the principal risk
were related to the posting of inappropriate journal entries to improve the result before tax for the year:
We have addressed this by assessing journal entries as part of our planning audit approach.

¢ We have obtained an understanding of the controls designed to prevent and detect iregularities.
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GCAPTEC.GROUP PLC:

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT TO THE'MEMBERS. OF CAPTEC GROUP PLC:

qualified opiriiof sgetion of Gur report.

A fuither idéscription of* our’ responmbrlmes is available on the ;Financial Reporhng Coun

' websité. gt
https Ilwww.frc.or.g.uk/audntorsresponsnbulmes ThiS description forms part of:oUFauditor's report; '

Use of our report

Thns report |s made solely to the Company s-members asva body ’macc dance w1th Chapter 3 of Part 16 of
6 e m' .

:and the Company s members as a bbdy, for our audlt work,.for" thls repo"_ or,_ or: the opxmons we have formed

DocuSigned by:
‘Matestm Dnivkon

2BEB0S6DB0ST4ES...

‘Malcolm-Thixton:(Serior Statutory Auditor).
For and on betialf of BDO LLP, Statutory Auditer
;Southampton UK

Date: 26 May 2023
BDO) LLP is & liriited liability parthership fegisterad in England and Walles {withregistered number0¢305127).
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CAPTEC GROUP PLC

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND.OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
[FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

The notes on pages 26 to 76 form pant of these financial statements.
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2022 2021
Note £000 £000
Revenue 7 32,594 26:236
‘Cost of sales {22,222) (17,258)
Gross profit 10,372 8,978
‘Other operating income 5] .90 50
lAdjusted administrative expenses {4,322) {3,451)
EBITDA 6,140 5,577
Exceptional items i0 (394) -
Depreciation and-amortisation 19 ) (414) (155)
[Other expenses ‘32 (67) _(300)
Administrative expenses {5,197) '(3,906’):
Profit from operations 5,265 5122
Finance income 182 150
Finance expense (1) (2)
Profit before-tax 5,446 5270
Tax expense 15 (942) (964)
Profit for the year 4,504 4,306
Other comprehensive income:
Exchange gains arising on translation on foreign opérations 1 32
Total comprehensive ificoine. 4,505 _ 4,338
2022 2021
) . £ £
Earnings per share attributable to the ordinary equity holdersof the parent
Profit or loss
Basic 16 '0.090 2.132
Diluted 16 0,086 2.028




. CAPTEC GROUP PLC
REGISTERED NUMBER: 11281644

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2022

Assets

‘Non=current assets
Property, plant and equipment
Intangible assets,

Current.assets

Inventories

Contract assets

Trade-and other receivables
Cash and cash equivalents
Current asset investments

Total assets

Liabilities

Non-current liabilities

Trade and other liabilities
Lease liabilities:and borrowings
Deferred tax liability

Current liabilities:

Trade and other liabilities.
Contract liabilities:

Lease liabilitiés and borrowings

Total liabilitles

Net assets

20.

Note

18
19

21

23

22

24

25
27
15

25

26

27

. e As:at
2022 2021 1 January.2021
£000 £000. £000
5,029 4,971 5,089
1,426 1,262 830
6,455 6,233 5,919
9,521 3,914 3,128
189 285 10
8,773 5,629 5,744
16,947 9,710 2,721
6,085 16,234 20,321
41,515 35,772 31,924
47,970 42,005 37,843
25 34 .
77 - 25
347 315 145
449 349 170
5,693 4,096 3,642
1,050 1,061 1;156
32 25 39
6,775 5,182 4,837
7,224 5,531 5,007
40,746 36,474 32836




~_ CAPTEC'GROUPPLC
'REGISTERED NUMBER: 11281644

‘CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION (CONTINUED) -
AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2022

L .. Asat
2022 2021 ‘1 Januafy 2021
Note £000 £000 £000
Issued capital and reseryes:attributable to owners of the’

parent. :
-Share capital 28 50 2 2
Foreign exchange reserve 99 26 3)
Share option reserve 367 . 300 e
Rétained eamings 40;230 36:143 32,837
40,746 36,474 32,836
TOTAL EQUITY —— 40,746 36474 . 32,636

The financial statements on pages 4 {o 75 were-approved and authofised ot issue by the board of directors-on 26 79 5/2 3
and were signed on its’behalf by: R

Max Toti
Director

The.notes on pages 26.10 75 form part of these financial statements.
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CAPTEC GROUP PLC
REGISTERED NUMBER: 11281644

COMPANY STATEMENT OF FINANGIAL POSITION
AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2022

2022 2021
Note £000 :£000
Assets
Non-current assets .
Invesiments 2772 2,713
) 2,772 2,713
Current assets. 4
‘Trade and other recéivables 22 1,734 -
Cash and cash equivalents: 141 -
1,875 -
Total assets 4,647 2,713
Liabilites
Non-current liabilities
Current liabilities ) o
Trade and other liabilities 25 .251 2,411
251 2,411
Total liabllities . 251 2,411
Net assets 4,396 302
Issued capital and reserves attributable:to owners of the parent v
‘Share captital 28 50 2
Other reserves 367 300 -
Rétained earnings 3,979 -
TOTAL EQUITY __4,396 302

Thé ‘Company’s profit-for the year was £4,396k (2021 - £1,000k).

The financial stateménts on pages 41680 were approved-and authorised fof issue by the board of.directors on 26 /0 ¢ /7 3
-and were signed on’its-behalf by: ;

Max. Toti
Director

The Rotes on pages 26 to 75 form part of thése financial statements.
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CAPTEC GROUP PLC

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

The notes on pageés 26 ta 75 form part of these financial statements.
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Foreign
exchange Share option Retained
Share capital reserve reserve earnings Total equity
£000 £000 -£000 -£000 £000
At 1 January 2021 2 (3) - 32,837 32,836
Comprehensive income for
the year
Profit for the year - - - 4,306 4,306
Other compréhensive income - i - . - - -
Total comprehensive ]
income for the year - - - 4,306 4,306
Dividends - - - (1,000) {1,000)
Share options granted - - 300 - 300
Currency translation
differences - 32 - - 32
Total contributions by and ] ) .
distributions to owners - 32 300 (1,000) (668)
At 31 December 2021 ' 2 29 300 36,143 36,474
At 1 January 2022 2 29 300 36,143 36,474
Comprehensive income for
the year
Profit-for the year - - - 4,504 4,504
Other compirehensive income . - - _ - - -
Total comprehensive o
income for the year - - — 4,504 4,504
Dividends - - - (369) (369)
Bonus Issue 48 - - (48) -
Share options granted - - 67 - 67
Currency transiation
differences: - 70 - - 70
Total contributions by and _ _ o
distributions to owners 48 70 67 -(417) (232)
At 31 December 2022 50 9 367 40230 ___ 40746



CAPTEC GROUP PLC

COMPANY. STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

At1.January 2021

‘Comprehensive income for the year
Profit for the year

Total compréhensive income for the year

Dividends
‘Share ‘options granted

Total contributions by and'distributions to owners:

At 31 December 2021

At 1 January 2022

Profil for the year

Total comprehensive income for the year
Dividends

Bonus Issue )

Share options granted

Total contributions by and distributions to owners

At.31.December 2022

The.notes on pages.26 to 75-form part of these financial statements.

Other

o Retained
Share capital reserves earnings  Total.equity
£000 £000 £000 £000
2 - : 2
- 1.000 1,000
- - 4:000 1,000
. - (1,000) (1,000)
- 300 .. 300
- 300 (4,000) (700)
2 300 - 302\
2 300 : 302
- - 4,396 4,39
. - 4,396 . 4,396
- - (369), (369)
48 - - (48) -
. 67 - . 67-
48 67 (417) (302)
50 367 sa78 4396,
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CAPTEC GROUP PLC

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

Cash flows from operating activities
Profi-forthe year

Adjustments for

income tax eXpense

Other non-cash income

Share option expense

Finance income

Finance expense

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment and ROU assets
Amortisation of intangible fixed assets

Movements in working capital:
Increas€ in‘inventories -

Increase in trade and other receivables
Decreasel(increase) in contract assets
Increase in trade and other payables
Decrease in contract liabilities

Cash used in / generated from operations
Income . taxes paid

Net cash (used in)/from operating activities
Cash flows from investing activities
Interest received

Purchases of property, plant and equipment
Cash released from deposit

Repayment of loan
Payments to acquire intangible assets

Net cash from investing activities
Cash flows from financing activities
Dividerids paid v

Capital payments in respect of leases
Interest paid in respect of leases

Net cash used.in financing activities

Net cash increase.In.cash-and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginnirg of year
Exchange gains on cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

25

Note

15

14
g
18
19

19

17

2022 2021
£000 £000
4,504 4,306
942 964
(50) -
68 300
{182) (150)
1 2
271 147
143, 8
5,697 5577
(5,608) (786)
(3,144) (1,439)
96 (289)
1,764 462
1) (95)
(1,206) 3,430
{1,008) (789)
(2,214) 2,641
182 150
(218) (20)
10,149 4,087
- 1,100
(307) (441)
9,806 4,876
(3869) (500)
(27) (38)
(1) 2)
(397) (540)
7,195 6,977
9,710 2,721
42 12
16,947 9,710




CAPTEC GROUP PLC

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

Accounting policies
1.1 Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial statements of the Company and entities
(including structured entities) controlled by the Company and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved when
the Company: :

. has power over the investee;
. is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee; and
. has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Company reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and circumstances indicate that
there are changes to one or more of the three elements of control listed above.

When the Company has less than a majority of the voting rights of an investee, it has power over the
investee when the voting rights are sufficient to give it the practical ability to direct the relevant activities
of the investee unilaterally. The Company considers all relevant facts and circumstances in assessing
whether or not the Company's voting rights in an investee are sufficient to give it power, including:

. the size of the Company's holding of voting rights relative to the size and dispersion of holdings of
the other vote holders;

o potential voting rights held by the Company, other vote holders or other parties;

. rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and

. any additional facts and circumstances that indicate that the Company has, or does not have, the

current ability to direct the relevant activities at this time that decisions need to be made, including
voting patterns at previous shareholders' meetings.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Company obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases
when the. Company loses control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses of a subsidiary
acquired or disposed of during the year are included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income from the date the Company gains control until the date when the Company
ceases to control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income are attributed to the owners of the
Company and to the non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive income of subsidiaries is attributed
to the owners of the Company and to the non-controlling interests even if this results in the
non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of subsidiaries to bring their
accounting policies into line with the Group's accounting policies.

All'intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows relating to transactions
between members of the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation. -

Subsidiary company’s Cove Industrial Enterprises Limited and Ash Wireless Electronics Limited are

exempt from the requirement of the Companies Act 2006 relating to the audit of the accounts under
section 479A, Captec Group Plc has provided a guarantee for the subsidiaries for the current year.
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CAPTEC GROUP PLC

NOTES 7O THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

‘Accounting policies (continued)
1.2 ‘Going concern

The management assessment of whether the Company should continue to report on the going concern
basis includés the preparation of a detailed budget for a period of twelve months, with a hlgher-level
forecast for the period beyond 12 months for no less than 3 years from the balance sheet date, which is
also broken down by month. Assessment:of performance against both the budget and the Ionger-term
model is-undertaken on'a monthly basis.

The going concern :analysis -also iricludés the evaluation of the material uncéraintiés and all available.
information, lnciudmg potential material adverse effects within the industry; the global economy and the
reguiatory regime. In addition, the Group undertakes sensitivity ‘analysis against key assumptions to
make an asséssment of the impact of adverse variances.

The Company’s continuation as a going concern i§ based on its significant cash resources and an
operating model that remained cash positive throughout the review period, This is. despite the impact
Covid had on its operations and customers ahd the supply chain issues that resulted when restrictions
were eased. The Directors are confident that profitabie operation will continue and its balance sheet will
remain robust.

At the time of the preparation of the'annual report, management were not aware of any other events or
conditions beyond the period of management's assessment that cast significant doubt on the entity’s
ability to continue as a going concern.

1.3  Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried at cost as established at the date of acquisition
of the business less accumulated impairment losses, if any.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated to each of the Group's cash-generating
units (or groups of cash-generating units) that is expected to benefit from the. synergies of the
combination.

A cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment annually, or more
frequently when there is an indication that the unit may be impaired. if the recoverable amount: of the.
cash-generating unit is less; than: its ‘carrying ‘amount, the impairmerit 10ss is. allocated first to reduce.the:
«carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the unit-and then to. the other assets of the unit pro rata
based on the carrying amount of each asset inthe unit. Any impairient loss for goodwill is recogriised
directly in profit or loss. An impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed. in subsequent
periods.

On disposal .of the relevant cash-generating unit, the attributable amount of goodwill is included, in the
determination of fhe profit or loss on disposal.
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CAPTEC GROUP PLC

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

Accounting policies (continued)
14 Revenue

The Group designs and manufactures a range of electronic equipment. It therefore recognises revenue.
as follows:

Sale of goods
Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when all of the following conditions are satisfied:
« the Group has transferred control to the buyer,;

» the Group retains neither continuing managerial involvement to the degree usually associated with
ownership nor effective control over the goods sold;

« the amount of revenue can be measured reliably;
e itis probable that the Group will receive the consideration due under the transaction; and
o the costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of the transaction can be measured reliably.

Therefore, for relevant contracts, the Group’s performance obligations with respect to physical goods are
to deliver a finished product to a customer at.a point in time.

Rendering of services

Revenue from a contract to provide services is recognised when all the following conditions are satisfied:
« the amount of revenue can be measured reliably;

« itisprobable that the Group will receive the consideration due under the contract;

o the stage of completion of the contract at the end of the reporting period can be measured reliably;
and

» the costs incurred ard the costs 16 complete the contract can be measured reliably,

For some services performance obligations are recognised at a point in time in.accordance with the level
of completion achieved at that point in time. Whereas other services; such as extended warranty sales,
are recognised over time as the performance obligation to support warranty requirements is'discharged,
in ‘accordance with the sales contract.

Where performance obligations have not been satisfied at the reporting date any advanced payments
are recognised as contract liabilities in this set of financial statements..

Revenue is only recognised to the extent that it is highly probable that a significant reversal will not
oceur.
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CAPTEC GROUP PLC

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED, FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

Accounting policies (continued)

1.4 Revenue (continued)

The Groupfollows the 5-step process as set out within IFRS 15 “Revenue” for all revenue streams!

« contract identification is performed, ‘with each cusipmer having a separate contract with the Group.
‘Thereafter, any subsequent changes are affected by separate addendums to the relevant contract.
Although every contract is unique — each has a significant.level of replicated clauses that give similar
trading arrangements within each income stream;

+ the performance obligation for each révenue stream is set out above;

+ the transaction price is determined as the fair value of the consideration the Group expects to
receive for the provision of the goods or services;

» the transaction price is allocated to the performance obligations in respect of the fair value of each
obligation, often determined by the level of effort involved in each; .and -

« revenue i$ either recognised at a point in tim_e, or over time, as set out above, as each performance
obligation is fulfilled. Occasionally, revenue transactions are accrued at period end (reflected as
contract.assets) and transferred to trade receivables when invoiced.

No element of financing is deemed present as the sales are made with a credit term of 30 to 90 days,
which is consistent with market practice. The Group does not expect to have any contracts where the
period between the transfer of the promised 'goods or services to the customer and payment by the
customer exceeds one year. As a consequence, the Group does not adjust any of the transaction prices
for the time value of money.

The Group's obligation to provide a refund for faulty products under the standard warranty terms is
recognised as a returns' provision to the extent it is considered necessary to do. 5.

A-receivable' is recognised when the goods are delivered as this'is thie point iri time that the consideration
is unconditional because only the passage.of time is required before the payment is due.

1.5 Leasing

Leases are classified as fi inance leases whenever the terms of the lease: transfer substantially. all the
risks and rewards of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases..

(i) The Group.as a lessor

Rental income from operating leases,is recognised on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant
.lease Initial direct costs- incliréd in negotiating -and arranging :an operating lease are addéd to the
carfying amount of the-leased asset and recognised oh a straight-line.basis over the lease ferm,

The rental income is included in 'Other Operating Incoime' as applicable, in the Consolidated Statement
of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income.

29



CAPTEC GROUP PLC

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

Accounting policies (continued)

1.5 Leasing (continued)

(ii) The Group as a lessee

The Group assesses whether -a contract is or contains a lease, at inception of a contract, The Group
recognises a right-of-use asset and a corresponding lease liability with respect to all lease agreements in
which it is the lessee, except for short-term leases (defined as leases with a lease term of 12 months or
less) and leases of low-value assets. For these leases, the Group recognises the lease payments as an
operatmg expense on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease unless another systematic basis is
more representative of the time pattern in which economic benefits from the leased asset are consumed.

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments. that are not paid at the
commencement date, discounted by using the rate implicit in the lease. If this rate cannot be readily
determined, the Group uses its incremental borrowing rate,

The incremental borrowing rate depends on the term, currency and start date of the lease and is
determined using the risk-free rate based on government bond rates for the country where the lease
takes place and an entity-specific adjustment to refiect the terms considered likely to be extended to the
entity that enters into the lease,

Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease liability comprise:

. fixed lease payments (including in-substance fixed payments), less any lease incentives;

. variable lease payments that depend on an index or rate, initially measured using the index or rate
at the commencement date;

+ . the amount expected to be payable by the lessee under residual value guarantees;

. the exercise price of purchase options, if the lessee is r’easohab!y certain to exercise the options;
and

. paymerits of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the exercise of an option
to terminate the lease.

The lease liability is included in the 'Loans and borrowings' line in the Consolidated Statement of
Financial Position.

The lease liability is subsequently measured by increasing the carrying amount to reflect interest on the
lease liability (using ‘the effectlve interest method) and by reducmg the carrying amount to reflect the
lease payments made.

The Group remeasures the lease liability (and makes a correspondlng adjustment to the related
right-of-use asset) whenever:

. the lease term has changed or there is a change in the assessment of exercise of a purchase
option, in which case the lease liability is remeasured by discounting the revised discount rate;
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CAPTEC GROUP PLC:

NOTES TO THE. CONSOLIDATED; FINANCIAL STATEMENTS'
FOR THE:YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER: 2022

Atcounting policies ,(_c.cn,t.inued}

1.5  Leasing (continued)

':the lease payments change due to changes in’ an rndex or rate or~a change |n expected'}payment'

- alease contract |s “modified anhd the lease ‘modification is: rot'accourited for-as:a separate: lease, m
which case: thé lease: llabrmy is remeasured. by ’drscountmg the revised lease paymerits. usmg &
revised: dlscount raté.

The: Group did nof make ahy such adjustments during the: pe‘rifo’d§ ﬁréséﬁt”e;d.

The nght—of-use assets  comprise the' initial ‘measurement :of the «correspondmg lease Irabthty lease:
payments made at or before the. commehcément.day ahd any initial direct costs. They aré subsequently:
measured ‘at'cost less dccumitlatéd. depremetron and impairment 10ss€s;

nght-of usg assets are depreciated over.the shorter penod of lease term and useful life of the underlying

-asset. Ifa \ease transfers. ownershrp of the underlylng assét or the cost of the nght-of—use asset reflects
that.the Group ‘€xpécts to exercise a purchase option, the related righit-of-use asset is deprectated over
‘the useful life-of the underlying asset. Thig dépreciation starts at the commencement date of the lease.

The: right-of-use assets: are’ included .in the, 'Property Plant. and Equiptient” as applicable; ‘inv the.
Consolidatéd Statement of Financial Position.

The: Group ‘gpplies |AS 36:to determine whether a right-of-use-asset is impaired and -accotints for-any
identified impairment loss as descnbed in note. 1.11.

4 léssee:not to: separate non-lease components :and instead’
ease components asa srngte arrangement The “Group has-

As-a praciical expedient; IFRS 16 perii
account; for “dny lease. and associated: non-
used this practlcal expedient:

1.6 _E,oreigntcufrencyf-

3rried gt falr value;
g he date when- ’the?
fair valie'was determrned Non-monetary items that'are measured m terms. of hrstoncal costinaa. foretgn:
currency. are-not retranslated.

dates of‘the ""nsactrons are used Exchange dlfferencee ansmg, |f any “are 'recogmsed m other
;cemprehenswe ‘income and aceumulated. iy equtty (and aftributed to non-centidliing interests .as
=appropnate)
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‘CAPTEC GROUP PLG.

NOTES: TO. THE: CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR.THE YEAR ENDED:31 DECEMBER 2022,

rda
h

‘Government grants that are réceivable as compensatlon for: :eXpenses’ or losses ' already

Liabilities regognis

‘Accdunting policies (continuedy

1.7 Governmentgrants

ts are: nol recogmsed untll lh"""' i§ feasonable assurance fhat’ the Group‘wﬂl comply-

oCeived:

of firiaricial posmon ‘and. tF3 3
llves of the related assets.

urred or: for-
clated costs are

thé purpose of giving lmmedlate financial support to the Group With no. future
recognlsed in. profit.or loss ifi the. périod:in which they become | recelvable

The benefit of a ‘governmeit loah dt a:below: market rate ‘of interest is: treated as 4 government gram
feasured -as: ihe difference between. proceeds récéived and the: fair value of the, loan based on
prevalllng market interest rates,

Tax: credits -claimed under the Tesearch and development expendnure credit (RDEC') scheme :are:
aceoiinted for'uhder IAS 20 as government grants in line-with.the:accounting pollcy noted above.

1.8 Employee benefits

Shoit-term and:other long-term employée benefits.

A liability is recogmsed for benefi ts accrumg to employees in fespect of wages and salanes annual leave
‘and sick leave in the period the: related serwce is rendered at the undiscounted amount of the ‘benefits
_lexpected to be pand in.exchange:for th :

Liabilities : recognlsed in: respect " of short-term employeé "benefits: are measured: 3t the: lindiscoufited
amouit.of the bengfits expected to-be pald in exchange for the related sérvice. .

nefits. dré:r

d atthe- present valiie
sct'of Services provided

d in fespect of‘other,long

-term employee 1

by‘employees Up 16 ¢ fepoiting: date.

1.9 Share:based payients

Share-based payment transactions-of the Company

Equity-séttied: ‘share-based payments, to employees and oth rslprowdmg similar services aré meagured

at the:tair value of the equny instruments :at the grant date-

:The falr value: determlned al the giant: date 'f'the equny-settled share—based payments is expensed on-a




CAPTEC GROUP PLC

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

Accounting policies (continued)

1.8 Share-based payments (continued)

Equity-settied share-baséd payment transactions with parties other than employees are measured at the
fair value of the goods or services received, except where that fair value cannot be estimated reliably, in
which case they are measured at the fair value of the equity instruments granted, measured at the date
the entity obtains the goods or the counterparty renders the service,

For cash-settled share-based payments, a liability is recognised for the goods or services acquired,
measured initially at the fair value of the liability. At the end of each reporting period until the liability is
settled, and at the date of settlement, the fair value of the liability is remeasured, with any changes in fair
value recognised in profit or loss for the year.

1.10 Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred tax.

(i) Current tax

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from ‘profit before
tax’ as reported in the Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
because of items of income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and items that are
never taxable or deductible. The Group's current tax is calculated using tax rates that havée been enacted
.or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

(ii) Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities in the consolidated financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the
computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all deductible temporary differences to the
extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which those deductible temporary
differences can be utilised. Such deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if the. temporary
difference arises from the initial recognition (other than in a business. combination) of assets and
liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit: In addition,
deferred tax liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference arises from the initial recognition of
goodwill.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary differences associated with investments in
subsidiaries and associates, and interests in joint ventures, except where the Group is able to control the
reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in the
foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary differences associated with
" such investments and interests are only recognised to the exterit that it is probable that there will be
sufficient taxable profits against which to utilise the benefits of the temporary differences and they are
expected to reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the ‘end of each reporting period and reduced
to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part
of the asset to be recovered.
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Accounting policies (continued)

1.10 Taxation (continued)

Deferred tax liabilities and. assets are measured at the tax rates that are expected.to apply in the period
in which the liability is settled or the asset realised, based. on tax rates: (and tax laws) that have béen
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax consequences that would follow
from the manner in which the Group. expects, at the end of the. reporting period, to recover or settle the
carrying amount of its assets and liabilities. '

{iii) Current and deferred tax for the year

.Current and deferred tax. are recognised in. profit or loss, except when they relate to items that are
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case, the current and deferred
tax-aré also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively. Where current
tax.or deferred tax arises from the initial accounting for a business combination, the tax effect is included
in the accounting for the business combination. .

1.11 Property, plant and equipment

Items of property, plant and equipment are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and any
accumulated impairment losses.

If significant parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, then they are
accounted for-as separate items (major components) of property, plant and eguipment. Any gain or foss
on disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised in profit or loss. Subsequent
expenditure is capitalised only if it is probable that the future economic benefits associated with the
expenditure will flow to the Group.

Depreciation is- provided on all other items of property, plant and eguipment so as. to write off their
carrying value over their expected useful economic lives. It is provided-at the following range:

Long-term leasehold property 50 years

Leasehqld improvements 5%
Plant-and machinery 10%
Fixtures and fittings- 10% - 38%

1.12 Intangible assets
(i) Intemnaliy-generated intangible assets.
Expenditure on reséarch acfivities is recognised as an expense in the period in-which it is incurred.

An internally-generated intangible asset arising from development (or ffom the development phase of an
internal project) is recognised if, and only if, all of the following have been demonstrated:

. the technical feasibility of completing the intangible asset so that it will be available for use or sale;

. the intention to complete the intangible asset and use or sell it;
. the ability to use orsell the intangible asset;
. how the intangible asset will generate probable future economic benefits;
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Accounting policies (continued)

1.12 Intangible assets (continued)

. the availability of adequate technical, financial and other resources to complete the development
and to use or sell the intangible asset; and

. the ability to measure reliably the expenditure attributable to the intangible asset during its
development.

The amount initially recognised for internally-generated intangible assets is the sum of the expenditure
incurred from the date when the intangible asset first meets the recognition criteria listed above. Where
no internally-generated intangible asset can be recognised, development expenditure is recognised in
profit or loss in the period in which it is incurred.

Subsequent to initial recognition, internally-generated intangible assets are reported at cost less
accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses, on the same basis as intangible assets
that are acquired separately.

(ii) Intangible assets acquired in a business combination

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination and recognised separately from goodwill are
initially recognised at their fair value.at the acquisition date (which is regarded as their cost).

Subsequent to initial recognition, intangible assets acquired in a business combination are reported at
cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses, on the same basis as intangible
assets that are acquired separately.

1.13 Inventories

inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Costs of inventories are determined
on a first in, first out basis. Net realisable value represents the estimated selling price for inventories less
all estimated costs of completion and costs necessary to make the sale.

1.14 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand deposits, together with other short-term,

highly liquid investments maturing within 80 days from the date of acquisition that are readily convertible
into known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

35



CAPTEC GROUP PLC

'NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

Accounting policies (continued)
1.15 Provisions

Provisions :are recognised when the Group has a preserit obligation (legal or constructive) as a resuilt of
a past event, it is probable that the Group will be required to. settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate
can be made of the-amount of the obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the
present obligation at the end of the 'reporting period, taking into’ account the risks and uncertainties
surrounding the obligation: When a prowsnon i$ measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the
present .obligation, its carrying-amount is the present value of those cash flows (when the effect of the
time value of money is material).

When some or all of the economic beneﬁts requiréd to settle a provision are expected to be recovered
from a third party; .a receivable is recognised as an asset if it is virtually certain that reimbursement will
be received and the amount of the receivable can be measured reliably.

1.16 Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are re'cognised when a Group entity becomes a party to the
contractual provisions: of the instruments.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than
financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are added to or deducted from
the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognmon
Transaction costs directly attributable fo the acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair
value through profit or-loss are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost .using the. effective
interest methiod, less any impairment loss.

1.47 Financial assets

On initial recagnition, the Group classifies its financial assets as either finsncial assets at “fair value
through profit or loss”, at “amortised cost using the effective interest method” or at “fair value through
comprehensive income®, as appropriate. The classification depends on the purpose for which the
financial assets were acqwred At the reporting date, the finaricial assets of the Group were all classified
as "loans” or “receivables’.

Trade receivables

These assets are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted
in an active market. They arise principally through the provisicn of goods and services to customers, but
also to |ncorporate other types of contractual monetary assefs. They are initially recognised at fair value
and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective. interest- method, less any impairment
loss.

The Group's financial assets comprise “trade receivables®, “other re‘ceivabl_es" (excluding prepayments)

and “cash and cash equwalents
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Accounting policies {continued)

1.47 Financial assets (continued)

Trade and-other receivables - impairment

The Group applies the IFRS 9 simplified approach to measuring expected credit losses using a lifetime.
expected credit loss provision for trade receivables and contract assets. To measure expected credit
losses on a collective basis, trade receivables and.contract assets are grouped based on similar credit
risk and aging. The contract assets have similar risk characteristics to the trade receivables for similar
types of contracts. The expected loss rates ate based on the Group’s historical credit losses experienced
over the three-year period prior to the period end.

The historical loss rates are then adjusted for current and forward-looking information on macroeconomic
factors affecting the Group's customers. The Group has identified the gross domestic product (GDP),
unemployment rate and inflation rate as the key macroeconomic factors in the countries where the
Group operates

1.18 Defined contribution schemes

Contributions to d'eﬂne‘q contribution pension schemes are charged to the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income in the year to which they relate,

1.19 Dividends

Dividends are recognised when they become legally payable. In the case of interim dividends to equity
shareholders, this is when deciared by the directors. In the case of final dividends, this is when approved
by the shareholders at the AGM.

Dividends on preference shares, which are classified as a financial liability, are treated as finance costs
and are recognised on an accruals basis when an obligation exists at the reporting date.

Reporting entlity

Captec Group Pic (the ‘Company') is a limited company incorporated in United Kingdom. The Company's
registered office is at 7 Whittle Avenue, Fareham, Hampshire, PO15 §SH. These consolidated financial
statements comprise the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively the 'Group' and individually 'Group
companies'’). The Group is primarily involved in the design manufacture and supply management of
specialise high availability computer systems capable of operating in hostile environments.
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Basis of preparation

The Group's consolidated and the Company's individual financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards, International Accounting Standards and
interpretations as adopted by the UK (collectively IFRSs). They were authorised for issue by the
Company's board of directors on 25 May 2023.

Details of the Group's accounting policies, including changes during the year, are included in note 1.

The Company has taken advantage of the exemption available under section 408 of the Companies Act

2006 and elected not to presént its own Statement of Comprehensive Income in ‘these financial
statements. '

In preparing these financial statements, management has made judgments, estimates and assumptions
that affect the application of the Group accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities,
income and expenses. Actual results may differ from these estimates. ‘

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to estimates are
recognised prospectively.

The. areas where judgments and estimates have been made in preparing the consolidated financial
statements and their effects are disclosed in note 6.

Changes in accounting policies

i) New standards, interpretations and amendments effective from 1 January 2022
Amendments to IFRS 3 - Business combinations

IASB effective date periods commencing on or after 1 January 2022.

The adoption of this standard did not have any material impact on the Group.

Amendments to IAS 16 - Property Plant and Equipment — Proceeds before intended use
IASB efféctive date periods commencing on or after 1 January 2022.

The adoption of this standard did not have any material impact on the Gréup.

Amendments to IAS 37 - Provisions - onerous contracts

IASB effective date periods commencing on or after 1 January 2022.

The adoption -of this staridard did not have any material impact on the Group.

Amendments to IAS 1 — Presentation of financial statements on classification of liabilities
IASB effective date periods commencing on or after 1 January 2022,

The adoption of this standard did not have any material impact on the Group.

Annual improvements on IFRS 1, IFRS 9, IAS 41 and IFRS 16

IASB effective date periods commencing on or after 1 January 2022.

The adoption of this standard did not have any material impact on the Group.
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Changes in accounting policies (continued)

iy New standards, interpretations and amendments not yet efféctive

There are a number of standards, amendments o standards, and interpretations which have been issued
by the IASB that are effective in future accounting periods that the Group has decided not to ‘adopt-early.

The following amendments are effective for the period beginning 1 January 2023:
« Disclosure of Accounting Policies (Ainendments to IAS 1 and IFRS Practice Statement 2);
o Definition of Accounting Estimales (Amendments to IAS 8); and

« Deferred Tax Related to Assets and Liabilities arising from a Single Transaction (Amendments to
IAS 12.)

The following amendments are effective for the period beginning 1 January 2024:

¢ IFRS 16 Leases (Amendment — Liability in a Sale and Leaseéback)
IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements (Amendment.— Classification of Liabilities as Current
or Non-current)

e IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements (Amendment — Non-current Liabilities with
Covenants)

The Group does not expect any ‘standards issued by IASB, but not yet effective, to have a material
impact an the Group.

The following new standards, interpretations and amendments, which are not yet effective and have not
been adopted early in these financial statements, will or may havé an effect on the Company's future
financial statements:

IFRS 17 Insurance contracts

IASB effective date is for periods commencing on or after 1 January 2023.

The directors anticipate that the adoption of these Standards in future periods will not have a material
impact on the resuits and net assets of the Company, however, it is too early to quantify this.

The directors anticipate that the adoption of other Standards and interpretations that are not yet effective
in future periods will only have an impact on the presentation in the financial statements of the Company.
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Functional and presentation currency

These consdlidated financial statements- are presented ‘in pound sterling, which is the Company's
functional currency. All amounts have been rounded to the néarest thousand, unless otherwise indicated.

Accounting estimates and judgments
6.1 Judgment

The following are the.critical Jjudgements, apart from those. involving estimations’ {which are dealt with
separately below), that‘the dlrectors have made in. the process of applying the Group's accounting
policies and that have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements:

Capitalisation of Intangible Fixed Assets - Development costs (see note 19)

The Directors make judgements regarding the point at which projects meet the.technical and commercial
feasibility criteria for projects, which are required to bé capitaliséd under IAS 38. In addition, judgement is
reqmred ‘when considering which-costs should be: capitalised. All expenditure on potential intangible fixed
assets is.treated as ‘an expense_unless the item being Worked on meets the definition of an intangible
asset.

Each month, relevant staff report the amount of actual time: spent on ‘development. The resulting direct
labour cost arising that meet the above criteria is transferred from “administrative costs” on the
Statement of Comprehensive Income to *intangible. fixed assets” on the Statement of Financial Position

Classlification of cash and cash equivalents and current asset investments
The Directors make Judgemenis regarding when liquid financial assets should be discloséd as cash and
cash equivalents of current asset investments. This determination is made with regard to the original

maturity: of these instruments, how readily convertuble they are to a known amount of cash and limited
risk of achange in value:
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Accountlng estimates and judgments (continued)
6.2 Estimates and ‘assumptions
Useful Economic Lives of Intangible Fixed Assets - Development costs (see note 19)

The Directors make estimatés regarding the useful economic lives of intangible fixed assets. Intangible
fixed assets consist of product development — which is assessed on & product-by-preduct basis but is
considered to have o longer than a 3-year life, from the point amortisation commences.

Useful economic lives of property, plant and equipment (excluding right of use assets)

Management have assessed the estimated useful lives of property, plant: and equipment as between 3
and 50 years using a straight-line basis. This estimate is based on historical knowledge of similar
classes of assets-and with regard to comparable businesses.

The useful economic lives and residual values are re-assessed annually. They -are amended when
necessary to reflect current estimates, based on technological advancement; future investments,
economic utilisation and the physical condition of the assets.

Valuation of share options (see note 32)

The. valuation of share options has been conducted in accordance with FRS 102, utilising a
Black-Scholes model. This type of model relies inherently on a number of inputs which must be
estimated in order to calculate option values and further estimates in terms of lapsing options and time
until an exit event is forecast to occur. Qutside of this the terms of this option plan also included a market
condition in respect of business valuation that needed to be incorporated into the valuation of the share
option at inception.

Revenue

The following is an analysis of the Group's revenue for the year from continuing operations:

2022 2021
£000 £000
Sale 6f'goods and services 32,594 26,236

__32594 26236

Timing of revenue recognition:

2022 2021

£000 £000

Goods and services transferred at a point in time 32,479 26,152
Services transferred over time 115 84
32,594 26,236
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Segment information
8.1 Products and services from which reportable segments derive their revenues
The Group's reportable segments under IFRS 8 are as follows:

Complex Systems
Other computing hardware
Tablets and other services

IFRS 8 requires operating segments to be identified on the basis of internal reports about the
components of the Group that are regularly reviewed by the chief operational decision maker, to allocate
resources to assess their performance. For management and reporting purposes, the Group, during the
year ended 31 December; reported against the following product area designations at a gross profit
level: Complex systems, Other computing hardware and Tablets and Other services.

These segments were reported to the Group on a monthly basis following their introduction, therefore
these are the segments reported to the Board as its primary reporting segments under IFRS 8, the Board
being considered as the chief operating decision maker.

Management makes no allocation of costs, assets or liabilities between these segments since trading
activities are operated across individual business units. Therefore, the directors believe it is not possible
to allocate administrative expenses or assets and liabilities to these segments.

8.2 Segment revenues and results

The following is an analysis of the Group's revenue and results from continuing operations by reportable
segment:

Segment revenue Segment gross profit

2022 2021 2022 2021

£000 £000 £000 £000

Complex Systems 15,802 11,930 3,760 3,479
Other computing hardware 11,045 10,180 3,622 3,369
Tablets and other services 5,747 4,126 2,990 2,130
—e 32,504 26,236 10,372 8,978

Gross Profit ) 10,372 8978

The accounting policies of the reportable segments are the same as the Group's accounting policies
described in note 1. Segment profit represents the profit before tax earned by each segment without
allocation of central administration costs and directors' salaries, share of profit of associates, share of
profit of a joint venture, gain recognised on disposal of interest in former associate, investment income,
other gains and losses, as well as finance costs. This is the measure reported to the chief operating
decision maker for the purposes of resource allocation and assessment of segment performance.
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8.3 Revenue from major products and services

2022 2021
£000 £000
Complex Systems 15,802 11,931
Other computing hardware 11,045 10,180
Tablets and other servicés - 8,747 4,126

8.4 Geographical information

The Group's revenue from: continuing operations from extern‘ai_qustomers by location of operations and
‘information ‘about its non-currenit assets by location of assets are detailed below:

Revenue from external

_ customers Non-current assets

2022 2021 2022 2021

£000 £000 £0'90 £000

United Kingdom 20,681 16 921 6,275 6,198
Europe 3,098 2,320 - -

North America 6,244 5,354 181 36
Rest of the world 2,571 1,642 - -

. 32594 . 26237 _ 6456 6234

8.5 Information about major customers

in year eénded 31 December 2022 one customer accourited for more than 10% of revenue, accounting
for 53% of the Company's revenues (2021 55%).
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Other operating income

2022 2021
€000 £000
Other operating income’ 16 13
Governiment grants recéivable 74 37
90 50
Exceptional costs
2022 2021
-£000 £000
Transaction-related costs 394 -

Costs and income ‘are classified as ‘exceptional if they are of a one-off nature.or their inclusion within
Iarger éxpense categories. on the Consolidated Statemént of Comprehensive Income would be
potentially- misleading to users of the financial statements.

Costs in FY22 related to the corporate fees and related costs incurred i the period in relation to work
undertaken for a potential transaction.

Expenses by nature

2022 2021

£000 £000
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 271 147
Foreign exchange gainsfioss 109 (3
Amortisation of intangible assets 143 8
Share option expense 67 300
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12,

13.

Auditors' remuneration

During the year, thé. Group obtained the.following services from the Company's auditors:

Fees payable to the Company's. auditors for the ‘audit of the consolidated
and parent’ Company s financial statements

Employee benefit expenses

Group

Employee benefit expenses (including directors) comprise:

Wages and salaries

National insurance

Defined contribution pension cost
Share based payment.expenses

2022 2021
£000 £000.
62 45
2022 2021
£000 £000
6,123 4,436
553 404
248 199
67 300
6,991 5,339

Key management perso,nnel compensation

Key management personnel are those persons having authority and reésponsibility-for planning, directing
and controlling the' activities of the :Grolip, includiig the directors of the Company listed oh page 1, and

the Financial Controlier of the Company.

Salary

National Insurance

Defined contribution scheime costs
Share based payment expense

2022 2021
£000 £000
376 192
42 21

7 16

7 46
432 275
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13.

Employee benefit expenses (continued)

The monthly average number of persons, including the diréctors, employed by the-Group during the year

was as follows:

2022 2021
No' NO
Operations - 85 87
‘Sales and marketing ‘ 17 14
Innovation and development 34 34
General 'and administration 23 27
159 162
Company
2022 2021
o -£000 £000
Employee benefit expenses (including directois) comprise:
Wages and salaries 429 -
National insurance 51 .
Defined contribution pension cost 7 -
487 -

The monthly. average niimber of persons; including the directors, employed by the Company during thé

'year was.as follows:

2022

No.

Operations 1
Geéneral and administration 3
4
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14,

Finance Incoimie and expense,

Recagniséd in profit. of loss

Finance income

Interest on:

- Bank'deposits

Total intérest income arising from financial'assets measured at

.amortised cost or FVOCI

Total finance income:

Finance expense

Interest on'leasg liabilities

Total finance expense.

Net finance income recoghised.in profit or loss

2022 2021
£000 £000
182 150
182 150
182 150
1 2

1 2
181 148
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Tax.expense.

15:1 Income tax recognised in profit or loss

2022 2021
£000 £000
Curren?‘tax
Gurrent tax on profits for the:year , 861 793
Adjustmentsiin respect of prior years (205) (224)
Overseas tax: 254 226
Total current tax’ 910 795
‘Deferred tax expense
Origination and reversal of temporary differences " 24 . 124
Changes to.tax rates : 8 45
Total deferred tax D 32 169
942 964
‘Total tax expense:
Tax expense excluding tax on sale df disgoritinugd. operation and share of o o
tax of equity accounted associates and joint:ventures 942 964

942 964
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Tax expense (continued)

'15.1 Income tax recognised in profit or loss (coﬁtln‘ued)

The. reasons for the difierence between the actual tax charge for the year and the standard rate of
corporation tax in the United Kingdom applied.to profits for the year-are as follows:

2022 2021
£000 £000
Profit for the year 4,504 4,306
Income tax expense (including income tax on associate, joint venture and
discontinued operations) 942 964
Profit before income taxes 5,446 5270
Tax using the' Company's domestic tax rate of 19% (2021:19%) 1,034 . 1,001
Fixed asset differences 15 -
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes, other than-goodwill, amortisation
and impairment, 99 76
Higher rate taxes on overseas earnings 67 60
2021 Research and development claim (198) (224)
Adjustments to tax charge in respect of prior periods - deferred tax (3) -
Remeasurement of deferred tax for change in tax rates 8 -
Non-taxable income (10) (45)
Additional deduction for R&D expenditure (119) -
Adjustmentin research and development tax credit leading to an
increase/(decrease) in the tax charde: ‘ ) 50 -
‘Other differences leading to an increase/(decrease) in the tax charge - 96
Total tax expense ' 942 '964‘
Changes in tax rates and factors affecting the future tax charges
There were no factors that may: affect future tax charges.
45.2 Current tax assets and liabilities
2022 2021
£000 £000
Current tax liabilities
‘Corporation tax payable. 196 462
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15,

Tax expense (continued)

15.3 Deferred tax balances

Thie following is the analysis of deferred-tax-ass&ts/(liabilities) presented in the consolidated statemment of

financial position:

Deferredtax liabilities

2022
Deferred tax (liabilities)/assets in relation to:
Accelerated capital allowances

e

Tax losses carried-forward

2021
Deferred tax (liabilities)assets In relation to:

Accélerated capital allowanices

Tax losses carried forward:

50

2022 2021

£000 £000

_(347) (31 5)

Opening Recognised in Closing
bp[ange, profit-or loss balance
£000 ‘£000 £000
(320y (32) (352)
5 - 5

1_31 8 (32). . (347).
Opéning. Recognised in Closing
batance  profit of loss, batance
£000 £000 £000
{151y (169) (320)
7 b 5
(144) _ 1‘_?17-1) {315).
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18.

From, continuing operations attributable to the: ordinary equityholders

Earnings per share.

(I) Basic earnings per share:

of the Company

(ii) Diluted earnings per share

From continuing qperati'ons attributable to the ordinary equity holders
‘of the Company

(iii_)' Reconciliation of earnings’ used in calculating earnings per share

Profit attributable to the ordinary-equity holders of the Company used
in calculating basic earnings per share:

From continuing operations

Profit frof continuing opérations attributable to the ordinary equity
holders of the Company:

Used in calculating basic earnings per share

Used in calculating diluted earnings per share

51

2022 2021
£ £
0.090 _ 2:132
2022 2021
£ £
_0.086 2.028
2022 2021
£000 £000

__ 4,504 4,306
4,504 4,306
4,504 4,306
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186.

17.

Earnings per share (continued)

{iv) Weighted average humber of shares used as the denominator

Weighted average number of ordinary shares used as the denominator in
calculating basic earnings per share'

Adjustments for caiculation of diluted earnifigs pef share:
Options
Weighted average number of ordinary shares and potential ordinary

shares used as the denominator in calculating diluted earnings per
share ’

Dividends

Final dividend of 183 pencé (2021: 495 pence) per-Ordinary sharé
proposed and paid during the year relating to.the previous-year's results

2022 2021
Number Number
50,000,000 2,020,000
2,568,894 103,783
52568894 2123783
2022 2021

£000 £000

369 _ 1,000

No final dividend isfwas proposed in respect.of either 31 December 2022 or 31 December2021,
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18.

Property, plant and equipment
Group

Cost or valuation

At 1 January 2021

Additions

Transfers between classes
Foreign exchange movements

At 31 December 2021
Additions

Disposals

Foreign exchange movements

At 31 December 2022

Accumulated depreciation and
impairment

At 1 January 2021

Charge/(credit) -owned for the year
Charged financed for the year
Exchange adjustments

At 31 December 2021

Charge owried for the year
Charged financed forthe year
Exchange-adjustments

At 31 December 2022
Net book value
At 1 January 2021

At 31 December 2021
At 31 December 2022

Long-term
leasehold Plant.and Fixtures and
property  machinery fittings Total
£000 £000 £000 £000
5,669 145 304 6,118
4 4 12 20
- (1) 1 -
. 10 - 10
5,673 158 317 6,148
162 98 69 329
- - (1) (1)
1 4 - 5
5836 260 385 6,481
Long-term
leasehold Plant and Fixtures and
property machinery fittings Total
£000 £000 £000 £000
755 129 145 1,029
130 (59) 38 109
.38 - - 38
- 1 - 1
923 71 183 1,177
129 76 42 247
24 - - 24
1 3 - 4
1,077 150 . 225 1,452
4914 16 159 5,089
4,750 87 134 4,971
4,759 110 160 5,029

Computer software has been reclassified in the prior year from tangible fixed assets to intanigibles to
show the appropriate classification because.of its non-physical nature. This figure was immaterial in the

prior year:
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Property, plant and equipment (continued)

18.1. Assets held under leases

The ‘net book value of leased assets included as "Property; plant and egquipment” in the Consolidated.
Statement of Financial Position is as follows: - '

31 31
December  December
2022 2021
£000 £000
Right-of-use assets; excluding investment propery 108 21
Information about right-of-use assets is summarised below:
Net book value
31 31
December  December
2022 2021
£000 £000
Long-term léasehold property 108 21
Depreciation charge for the year ended
31 31
December  December
2022 20271
£000 £000
Long-term leasehold property 24 38
Additions to right-of-use assets
31 31
December  Deceinber
2022 . 2021
£000 £000
Additions to right-of-use assets 111 _ -

18.2 Assets pledged as security

The property at 18 Invincible Way, is subject to a fixed. and floating charge in respect of bariking faciliti€és
in place. )
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19.

Intangible assets

Group

Cost

At 1 January 2021
Additions - external
Additions - internal

At 31 December.2021
Additions - éxternal.

Additions - internal

At 31 December 2022

Accumulated amortisation and

impairment

At January 2021

Charge for the year - owned

At 31 December 2021

Charge for the year - owned

At 31 Deceimber 2022

Net book value

At 1 January 2021
At.31 December 2021
At 31 December 2022

_ Development  Computer
Goodwill expenditure. software Total
£000 £000 £000 £000
771 - 101 872
- - 40 40
- 401 - 401
771 401 141 1,313
- - 50 50
- 257 - 257
71 . 658 191 1,620
Development Computer
Goodwill expenditure software Total
£000 £000 £000 £000
- - 42 42
- - 9 9
z - 51 51
- 129 14 143
- _129° _65; _194
il - 59 830
771 401 90 1,262
774. 529 _126 1.426
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18.

Intangible assets (continued)

Computer software has been reclassified in the prior year from tangible fixed assets to. mtanglbles to
show the appropriate classification because of its non- -physical nature. This figure was immaterial in the
prior year:

The carrying amount. of goodwill relates to the acquisitions of Cove Industrial Enterprises- Limited
(£487,000) and ASH Wireless Electronics Limited (£284,000), both of which are considéred to be Cash
Generating Units (CGUs) in their own right. No intangibles with indefinite economic lives are allocated'to
either investment. Whilst all the capitalised development costs relate-to the Group's product development
activitie’s, where theé criteria for recognition are met.

The Group tests goodwill annually for impairment, or more frequently if events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the asset might be impaired. The carrying values are assessed on a value in
use basis for impairment purposes by calculating the net present value of future .cash flows ansmg from
the original acquired business. The goodwill impairment reviéw assessed whether the carrying value of

‘goodwill was supported by the net present value of future cash flows based on management forecasts

for 5.years and a discount rate.of 11 per cent. throughout the period under réview, where applicable. The
key assumptvon within the projections is a growth rate of c. 20% for each investment, The growth
assumption is underpinned by an assessment of both the existing capacity of each CGU and future

‘revenue/proﬁtablhty potential, as supported by being part of the overall Group. No terminal value of

future growth rate is used to determine cashfiows beyond the forecast period..
Even if no growth was achieved, which is considered possible, over 100% headroom remains when

compared to the current carrying value of the related goodwill for both CGUs. Both CGUs would have to
be over 80% under current forecasts in order to suggest there is an indication of impairment.
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20.

Subsidiaries

Details of the Group's material subsidiaries at the end of the reporting périod aré as follows:

Name of subsidiary

1) Captec Limited

2) Cove Industrial Enterprises
Limited

3) Ash Wireless Electronics
Limited

4) Captec Americas Inc.

:5) Captec Inc:*’

*indirectly held

Company

Place of
_ incorporation
Principal activity

Design, manufacture and 7 Whittle
-supply of specialist high Avenue,
-availability computer systems ~ Fareham,
capable of operating in Hampshire,
hostile environments PO15 58H

Manufacturer of metalwork and 7 Whittle

rack systems for aerospace Avenue,
and defence industry, Fareham,
including services related to Hampshire,
welding, milling etc. PO15 5SH
7 Whittle
Avenue,
Fareham,
Design of specialist electronic Hampshire,
and wireless communications PO15 5SH

Design, manufacture and
supply of specialist
computing platforms
engineeréd to meet the exact 15 Saltsman

requirements of any Drive; Unit 4,
application, irrespective of Cambridge,
complexity or environmental Ontario, N3H
demands. 4R7, Canada
4020 University
Drive, Suite
300, Fairfax,
) Virginia,
Dormant 22030

Investments in subsidiary companies

57

and operation

Proportion of ownership
interest and voting power
held by the Group (%)

2022 2021
100 100,
100 100
100 100
100 100
100 100

2022 2021

£000 £000

2,772 2,713
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21,

22.

inventories

Group 2022 2021
£000 £000

Raw materials 7.154 2,226
Work in progréss 2,367 1,688
_9521 3914

The amount of inventories recognised as an expense during 2022 was £19,533k (2021 - £15,234k).

Trade and other receivables

Group 2022 2021

£000 £000
Trade receivables ) 8,511 5,417
Prepayments and accrued income 184 178
Other. receivables 78 34
Total trade and other receivables 8,773 5,629
Total current portion (8,773) (5,629)

The carrying value of trade and other receivables classified as loans and receivables approximates fair
value,

The average credit period on sales of goods is 95 days. No interest is charged on outstandirg trade
receivables.

The Group recognised one bad debt provision in the year amounting to £23,000, where a company had
entered administration within the period, Outside of this the Group has recognised no- loss allowance
against trade recéivables because historical experience has indicated that receivables are generally
recoverable.

The Group writes off a trade receivable when there is information indicating that the debtor is in severe
financial difficulty and thefe is no realistic prospect of recovery, e.d. when the debtor has been placed
under liquidation or has entered into bankruptcy proceedings, or when the trade recéivables.are over two
years past due, whichever occurs earlier.

The Group appliés the IFRS 9'simplified approach to measuring expected credit losses using a lifetime
expected credit loss provision for trade receivables ‘and contract assets. To measure expected credit
losses on a collective basis; trade receivables and confract assets are grouped based on similar credit
risk and ageing. The contract assets have similar risk characteristics to the trade receivables for similar
types of contracts.
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22,

Trade and other receivables (continued)
The expected loss rates -are based on the Group's historical credit losses experiences over the three-
year period prior to the petiod end. The historical loss rates are thien adjusted for current and
forward-looking information on macroeconomic factors affecting the Group's customers. The Group-has
identified the gross domestic- product (GDP), unemployment raté and inflation- rate as the key
macroeconomic factors in the countries where the Group operates.
The lifetime expécted loss provision for trade receivables and contract assets is as follows:
More than  More than  More than
30 days 60 days 120 days
2022 Current past due past due pastdue Total £000
Expected loss rate 0% 0% 0% 0%
Gross carrying amount 7,963 155 256 137 8,511
Loss. Provision - - - - -
More than  More than  More than
_ 30 days 60 days 120 days
2021 Current past due past due pastdue Total £000
Expected loss rate 0% 0% 0% 0%
Gross carrying ariount 5,050 236 47 84 5,417
Loss provision - - - - -
All non-current receivablés are due within 3 years of 31 December 2022. None of those receivables has
been subject to a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition and, consequently, 12 month
expected credit losses have-been recognised, and there are no non-current receivable balances lifetime
expected credit losses.
As at 31 December 2022, there were no lifetime éxpected credit losses.
Company 2022 2021
£000 £000
Amounts due from group undertakings 1,720 -
Total financial assets other than cash and cash equivalents -
classified as loans and recelvables 1,720 -
Prepayments and accrued income . - 14 -
Total trade and other receivables ' 1,734 -
Total current portion {1,734) -

The canrying value of trade and other receivables classified as loans and receivables approximates fair
value.
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22,

23,

24,

Trade and other receivables (continued)

The amounts due from group undeﬂakin_gs to the Company. have atisen in the normal course of group
trading ‘and funding and are due within 1 year. By applying the ‘general approach to expected credit

losses, IFRS 7, the provision is £Nil.
Contract assets

Group

Balance at 1 January

Transférs from contract assets recognised at the beginning of the year to
receivables

Performance under contracts with customer in ‘advance of consideration
being paid or due

Balance at 31 December

Current asset investments:

Cash deposits with terms g_reater'than 3 months

2022 2021
£000 £000
285 10
(285) (10)
189 285
189 285
2022 2021
£000 £000
6,085 16,234

Current asset investments are made up, of cash placed on deposit for a term greater than:3 months. at

time of inception:.
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25.

Trade and other payables

Group

2022 2021

£000 £000
Trade payables 3,335 865
Other payables 155 166
Accruals 751 1,741
Total financial liabilities, excluding loans and borrowings, classified
as financial liabilities measured at amortised cost 4,241 2,772
Other payables - tax and social security payments 1,452 1,324
Government grants received ) 25 34
Total trade and other payables 5718 4,130
Less:.current portion - trade payables, (3,335) (865)
Less: current portion - other payables: (1,607) (1,490)
Less: current portion - accruals (751) (1,741)
Total current portion (5,693) {4,096)
Total non-current position _25 34

The carrying value of trade and other payables classified as financial liabilities measured at amortised

cost approximates fair value.

Company

Trade payables i
Amounts owed to group undertakings
Accruals

Total fihancial liabilities, excluding loans and borrowings; classified

as financial liabilities measured at amortised cost

Other payabies - tax and social security payments.

Total trade and other payables

Total current portion

The carrying value of trade and other payables classified as financial liabilities
cost approximates fair Value.
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2022 2021
£000 £000
44 -

- 2411
141 ;
185 2411

66 -
251 2411

(251) (2.411)

measured at amortised
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26.

27.

Conitract liabilitles:

‘Group

Balance at 1 January
Recognised as revenue:in the year
Additions

Balance at'31 December

Loans and borrowings,

Group

Non-current

Lease liabilities:

‘Current’

Lease liabilities

Total loans and borrowings

2022 2021
£000 £000
1,064 1,166-
{119). (676)
108 581
1,050 . 1,061
2022 2021
£000 £000
77 -
77 -
32 25
32 25i
109. _ 25

The carryinig valtie:of 16ans-and. borrowings: classified as financial liabilities measuréd at'amortised cost

approximates fair value.

The curfency profile of the Group's.Ioans-and borrowings is as follows:

Canadian Dollar{CAD)
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28.

29

Share capital

Authorised

Shares treated as equity
Ordinary shares of £0.001 each

Issued and fully paid

Ordinary shares of £0.001 each
At 1 January

Shares issued

At 31 December

Reserves

2022 2023 2021 2021
Number £000 ‘Number £000
50,000,000 50 2,020,000 2

Méﬂ_ﬁiﬂz@

2022 2022 2021 2021

Number £000 Number £000

2,020,000 2 2,020,000 2
47,980,000 48 - .

_50,000000 50 __ 2020000 2

The Group's capital and reserves are as follows:

Share. Capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. The nominal value of shares is included in share capital

Foreign exchange reserve

The foreign exchange reserve represents the cumulative differences on retranslation of the Group's

Canadian subsidiary

Retained earnings

Represents all 'other net gains and losses and transactions with shareholders (e.g. dividends) not

récognised elsewhere

‘Share option reserve

The share option reserve represents the fair value of all options granted under the Captec EMI Share

Option Plan
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Leases
Group

(i) Leases as a lessee

The Group leases office buildings through Captec Americas Inc.

Leadse ligbilities are die as follows:

2022 2021
£000 £000.
Contractual undiscounted cash flows due

Not later than one year ‘32 25

‘Between one year anid five years . 77 -
109 '25:

Lease liabilities included in the Consolidated Statement of Financial _
Position at 31 December 109 25

Non-current 77 -
Current 32 25

The Group. cofisidersthe liquidity risk-of difficulties.in meeting its financial obligations extrefnely low by
virtue of its-significant cash reéserves

The fol'low'ing amounts in respect of leases have, been recognised in profitior loss:

2022 2021
£000 £000
Interest.expense on lease liabilities 1 2




CAPTEC GROUP PLC

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

3.

Financial instruments - fair values and risk management
31.1 Accounting classifications and fair values

The following table shows the carrying-amounts and fair values .of financial assets and financial liabilities.
It does not include fair value information for financial ‘assets ahd financial liabilities ‘not measured at fair

valug if the cdrrying amourit is a réasohable approximation of fair value.

Carrying amount

Note . 2022 2021
£000 £000

Financlal assets not.measured at fair value
Trade and other receivables : 22 8,773 5,629
Cash and cash equivalents 16,947 9,710

25,720 15,339

Financial liabllities not measured at fair value

Financial lease liabilities 27 109 25

Tradeé and other payables: 25 4241 2772

4,350 . 2,797
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Financial instruments - fair values and risk managenient (continued)

.;3'1;év’Finan‘ciaii"iisk-m‘a’na'géme‘;ny‘obif‘eCﬁves*

\C ,roup reporfs m
Ks: are: managed based: on policies! and

Tbefc'-:,r(oyp‘f
¥ marketfisk:

4 interest rate risk;

. Credit risk:

© o liguidity fisk:ahd

©  foreign exchande fisk.

I common ‘With -all other biusinesses; the Group; is ‘exposed-0 Tisks: that:arise from:its use: of financial

instruments.. The prlnc1pal financial instruments’ used by ihe: Group; from which financial instrument risk
arises, aré as follows:-

s tradé and other feceivables;,
. cash and Cash equivalénts;,
. cliffent asset investrients: and

. {trade and. other'payables

‘the relevant penod Trade -and:other payables-are‘measiired.at.amortised: cost

31:3:Market risk:
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31

Finanéial instruments: fair values éndgr‘i"s,kmanag_emeni.f'(coriiihu'ed')j

31.4'Foréigh currency fisk management

‘The Graup- undertakes transactions denominated: in- forelgn currencres_, consequently, éxposures to;
-excha ge rate fluctuations' ‘arise: EXchangde: rate. exposures are managed within approved polrcy
parameters utlllsmg forward forergn exchange contracts:

‘The carrying amounts: of: the: Group's: forergn currency’ denomlnated -Mmoneétary assets and monetary"
iabilities at'theend. of the repoitinig. period are-as:follows:,

... Liabilities Assets.
2022 2021 2022 2021
‘£000 £000' £000 .£0,00.'
US Doliar (USD) 420 345 813 451
{Canadian Dollar-{(CAD): 348 645 3,047 :2:300
‘Eurg (EUR) 41 _ - 119' 151

Foreign-currency sensitivity:analysjs:
The Groupis mainiy:exposed to thé-US Dolldr (USD), thé Canadian Dollar {CAD)-and the Euro (EUR),

The’followrng tabie gétgils 1re: Group's sensitivity’ to: 8 20% increase and. decreasein the pound sterling:
agarnst the relevant’ foreign currencies. 20% is the sensmvnty rate used when fepdrting foreign currency:
risk rnternally to key management pérsonnel and represents management's. assessmentof the reasonably
possrble change in foreign exchange rates. The. sensmvrty analysis- ificludes’ only ouis niding foreign
currency denomlnated _mohetary: rtemsand adjusts their translationat the perrod end for.a-20% change n
forergn currency: rates: The sensitivity: analysis- lncludes extérnal loans as 'well as loans fo forelgn
opérations within the ‘Group:where the- denomlnatlon of theloan is in; currency ‘other than the-functional-
currency. of the iender or the borrower. A posmve nu below.indicates an’increase in profit or equity
where the' pound. sterling: strengthens 20% agamst the relevant currency. For a 20% ‘weakening of the
pound'sterhng ‘against ficy, thére would be '@ comparablé |mpa“‘é :afrthe. profit or equnty
-and the balandes below would. be;negatrve1

US Doltar (USD) ‘Canadian Dollar Euro (EUR).

(USD) impact
‘2022 2021 2022 ,
£000° £000.  -£000  £000'
68 18 - = @) (2
* : {(450)  (276) =

substantral banks ‘with. hrgh‘credrt ratings: The-faxim s i 1 y
theg Gioup has not: experieniced any l0sses on its cash and cash equrvalent or current asset mvestment

deposrts
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31.

Financial instruments -fair values and risk management (continued)
31.6 Liquidity risk:management

Liquidity and interest risk-tables

The following tables detail the: Group's remaining contractual maturity for its. non-derivative financial liabilities with agreed repayment periods. The-tables have
been drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities based on the earliest date on which the Group can be required to pay. The tables:
include both interest and principal cash flows: To the extent that interest flows -are floating rate, the undiscounted -amount is derived from interest rate curves at’
the end of the reporting period. The contractual maturity is based on the. earliest date on which the Group-may be'required to pay.

Carrying 3-12 More than 5
amount Total 1--3 months months 1-2years 2-5years years
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
31 December 2022
Trade payables 3335 3335 3278 57 - - -
Carrying ) 3-12 More than §
amount Total 1 -3 months months  1-2years 2-5years years
) £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
31 December 2021
Trade payables 865 __865 865 - - - -
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31.

Finangial instruments : fair values ahd risk management (continued)

31.8 Liquidity risk management (continued)

The followirig ‘table ‘details- the Group's expected maturity for its: non-derivative financial assets. The table has. been drawn up based on the undiscounted

.contractual’ maturities of thé financial‘assets including interest that will.be earned on those asséts. Theinclusion of information ‘on non-derivative financial assets

is necessary in order to understand the.Group's liquidity risk management as.the liquidity is. managed on-a net asset-and liability basis.

Carrying 3-12 More than 5
amount Total 1 -3 months: months 1.-2years 2-5years ‘years: .
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
31 December 2022
Trade'receivables 8511 __8511 8,373 138 - - =
Carrying 312 More than.5
amount Total 1 -3 months months 1-2years, 2-5years years
‘£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000: £000
31 December 2021
Trade receivables 5417 5417 :5333 . 84 - - -
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31.

Financial instruments - fair values and risk management (continued)

31.7 Fair value measurements

This note provides information about how the’ Group-detérmines fair values of various financial assets§

and liabilties.

Fair value of financial assets and liabilities that are not measured at falr value (but fair value

disclosures are required)

Except as detailed in the-following table, the directors consider that the carrying amounts of financial
assets and financial liabilities recognised in the: consolidated financial statements:approximates their fair

values.

Financial assets

Amortised cost

- trade and other receivables

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities held at amortised cost:

- trade and gther payables

Financial lease.payables

Carrying
amount
2022
£000

8,589

8,589

4,241

4,241

409

70

Fair value
2022
£000

8,589

8,589

4,241

4241.

109

Carrying
amount
2021

£000

5,451

5,451

2,772

2772

25

Fair value
2021
£000

5,451

5,451

2,772
2,772

25.
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32,

_S_h’a‘_r’e;b’,ased,paymen’ts'

Eriployee share option plan’of thie company

:The Group:has:an HMRGC: -approved shar, options scheme for: certam employees Each optiofy “entitles

er 10 purchase one share

treatment‘ The \$:aré on thé:same: terms Vas the approved S 1

The Grolp:used the Black:Scholes model in: arnvrng atthe farr valug at"grant date for the options granted.
in-the, penod due to no market: conditions being- ‘attached to. the:shares.

m‘ptlons used. in the valuatron 6nh grant, fof thé: optrons;

The followrng ‘were the: welghted ‘average 4as
considered exercisable in the penod ‘as grante

L 2021
Share price at:grant date: £28.40.
Exercise.price, £3:00
Expected vesting period (yearsy £2.26.
Volatility ' £0.43
Dividend yield -£0.05!
Risk-freeiinterast tate: . 0:03%
Discount 51.4%
Fair value. 2£13.73

There were: no grants in 2022 . The expected,volatllrty. was! determrned by calculatmg the historical.
' B ; d; ‘with the!

n
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32.

Share based payments (continuéd)

Movements in sharé options during the year

The following reconciles the share options' gutstanding at the: beginning and‘end'of the year:

2022 2021

Weighted Weighted.

) 2022 average 2021 -average

Number of exercise  Numberof exeréisg

options price ‘options price

£ £

Balance at the beginning of the.year 247,250 3 191,000 3
Granted during the year - 85,750 -

Forfeited during the year {83, 0001 = (29,500).

éﬁ&mé%ml

Opttons exercxsable at 31 December 2022 fotalied 2,568,894- (2021: 103 .741) with a weighted average:
exercise price of: £3.

2022 2021
Weighted average contractual life 5years 8 months 6 years 8 months
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33.

Adoption-of IFRS

As:stated in hote3; the-Group Finahicial Information'has been prepared in-accordancs with IFRS:

The:date of iransitiont6 IFRS'is' 1 Janiafy 2021 .(the, “Transition date™)..
The accountmg policies described in note 1 were applled when' preparing -the Group. Financial
the - ‘years. ended 31 D ‘}_2021 and 3% 'December 12052 and 4he; ‘eonsolidated,

St?atement of Firiaricial Pasition At the Transition. date.

UK € raily. Accepted gP
IFRS; 1 First-Time Adoptlon “of lnternatlonat Flnancval Reportlng tStandards whtch contams a number of

voluntary exemptions ¢ ahd mandatory excepttons from the requirément to; apply 1FRS’ retrospectlvely
Exceptiohs snd Exémptions Used during transition fo IFRS

Applied thé following: mandatory exception required by IFRS 1'in the Conversion from UK

"'hdsr jht:is ot Used'to Ereate; or revise: estimates:. The estimates previously made by,
the Group under U| AAP were not revused ‘foF the-application of IFRS except where.nécessary 1o
teflect any: differerice in accOUnting policies:

i\'djustrﬁents; Made in Connegtion with Transition to IFRS’

o IFRS 3 “Business combinations® = the standard réquires:all transaction-costs to be: expensed rather

than added to the costof thé i tment and jn doing so- reduces the. value:of g
; ion; goodw»l s not: amortlsed it tested fe
f any | amortlsatlon prevnously recognlsed with

Information;

The. main items: contributing 10 the -chafige; i ihe: Gi oup ‘Finandial lnformanon compared, with that
teported tinder UK GAAP At. the Transition Datesre $howri bélow.
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33.

Adoption of IFRS (continued)

A summary of the impact of IFRS transition equity in the Statement of Financial Pasition is.as follows:

£000
Equity reported in accardance with UK GAAP as at 31 December 2021 36,130
IFRS adjustments:
IFRS 3 - Business combinations - reversal.of amortisation 365
IFRS 3 - Business combinations - fransaction costs (14)
IFRS 16 - Leases (7)
Equity reported in accordance with IFRS as at 31 December 2021 36,474

A summary of the impact of IFRS transition to the Statement of Comprehensive. income and to the
Statement of Cash Flows is as follows.

‘£000
Profit after tax reported in-accordance with UK GAAP as at 31 December 2021 4,148
IFRS adjustments:
IFRS 3 - Business combinations - reversal of amortisation 157
IFRS 3 - Business combinations - transaction costs . -
IFRS 16 - Leases 1
Profit after tax reported in accordance with IFRS as at 31 December 2021 4,306
A summary-of the impact of IFRS transition to the Statement of Changes in Equity is-as follows:

£000
Equity-as at 31 December 2020 (as previously reported) 32,650
IFRS 3 - Business-combinations - reversal of amortisation 208
IFRS 3 - Business combinations - transaction costs (14)
IFRS 16 - Leases (8)
At 1 January 2021 32,836
Profit for the year (restated) . 4,307
Total comprehensive income for the year (res{atedi 669
At 31 December 2021 and 1 January 2022 (restated) 36,474

Company Transition

The Company's transition to IFRS is considered immaterial from the Company's' perspective and
therefore-the Director’s do not deem it necessary to provide detailed transition disclosures.
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34,

35,

36.

37.

Related party transactions

Balances and transactions between the Company and its subsidiaries, which are related parties of the
Company, have been eliminated on consolidation and are not disclosed in this note. Details of
transactions between the Group and other related parties are disclosed below.

34.1 Other related party transactions

Other reiated party transactions are as follows:

Related party relationship Type of transaction Transaction amount
2022 2021
£000 £000

Family of Director Consultancy services § 1

Controlling party

The group's ultimate controlling party is Mr M Toti, the managing director and majority shareholder.

Capital management
The Company's objectives when maintaini’ng capital are:

- to safeguard the entity’s ability to continue as a going concern, so that it can continue to provide returns
for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders; and .

- to provide an adequate return to shareholders by pricing products and services cornmensurately with
the level of risk.

The capital structure of the Company consists of shareholders® equity as set out in the statement of
changes in equity. All working capital requirements are financed from existing cash résources. and
borrowings

The Group is riot subject to any externally imposed capital requirements.

Events after the reporting date

Group and Company

T‘he Company undertook a number of steps to reorganise its share capital:
« Tegistration as-a PLC which took place in March 2023,

« anew set of interim articles of association were adopted by the.Company to reflect its re-registration
as a public limited company and the Company's name was changed to Captec Group Plc.
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